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January 28, 2009

Please clarify the start date of the contract, the transition period, and the RTOs.  The solicitation cover letter says to assume a contract start date of October 9, 2009.  However, various other places in the procurement documentation reference earlier dates:

· Section B.8 (page 6) says orders may be issued from July 9, 2009

· Section F-3 (page 19) says the ordering period shall commence on July 9, 2009

· Section L.14 (page 144, Table WBS 3.1) provides travel plug numbers for RTO# 1 and 2 starting in July 2009

· Section L.14 (page 146) says phase-in is to commence on or about May 1, 2009

· RTO #1 (page 1 subparagraph 3) cites a start date of July 9, 2009

· RTO #1 ( pages 2,3 and 4) Mission set dates in July and August 2009

· RTO #2 (page 1 subparagraph 3) cites a start date of August 1, 2009

Response:
The solicitation cover letter will be changed to reflect an anticipated contract start date of July 9, 2009.  All other referenced dates are correct.

Should paragraph number 5 be paragraph 4 in M.4 on page 168?

Response:

Yes.  Paragraph number 5 will be changed to paragraph number 4.
Reference the statement in L.13, page 126, “The Offerors shall define their understanding of the scope, complexity, research range operations unique aspects, customer and NASA interactions, key derived requirements, drivers for solution tradeoffs, and requirements challenges.”  This statement was previously located in Draft RFP, Section M and was referenced in Question # 300 (in Group VI-A) with the following Government response: “The words “key derived” will be removed in the Final RFP.” Should Final RFP section L.13 incorporate the change stipulated in the response?
Response:

Yes.  The words “key derived” will be removed from Provision L.13.
Confirm that initial and ongoing training of new personnel on unique WFF systems are contract costs that will not require Contracting Officer approval.
Response:
As this is a total IDIQ contract, all costs are issued under a Task Orders which are approved by the Contracting Officer.
In the Statement of Work, Section 7, can heading “Precision Tracking Radar Operations, Surveillance Radar Operations and Research Weather and Science Radar Services” be numbered 7.1, 7.2 and 7.3?

Response:
The current version of the Statement of Work has the paragraph numbers identified.  If for some reason they are not identified on your version, they need to be inserted as identified in the above question.

The Cover letter states the offerors are to assume an October 9, 2009 contract effective date.  Throughout the RFP, there are dates that conflict with this effective date.  Section B, Paragraph B.8a indicates July 9, 2009 as the effective date of this contract.  Section F, Paragraph F.3 states: The effective ordering period shall commence on July 9, 2009, the effective date of this contract.  Section L, Paragraph L.14.2j indicates the phase-in is expected to commence on or about May 1, 2009.  RTO # 1 states the Period of Performance of this Task starts July 9, 2009.  Several Missions are identified that are occurring prior to October 9, 2009.  RTO # 2 states the Period of Performance of this Task is seven (7) months in duration starting at Launch minus 6 months, or August 1, 2009.  We request clarification on the anticipated award date, phase-in start date, and contract effective date.  With the start dates for RTO # 1 and 2, and several missions listed as occurring prior to October 9, 2009, request clarification on what offerors 
are to address in the Mission Suitability Volume as well as price?

Response:
See response to Question 1.

The Government has removed the material plug numbers for RTO # 1 and # 2.  In order to provide a reasonable accurate estimate for material for RTO # 1 and # 2, additional historical data is required.  Request detailed historical data for material purchases be posted in a searchable database format for the past 3 years.
Response:
See response to Question 301 for the Draft RFP questions.  The DRFP included a materials plug number of $2.6M for each contract year for RTO#1 and $100K for RTO #2.  The Draft RFP included plug numbers for materials based on historical contract year averages of the last 5-years of the current range services task under the Near Earth Networks Services contract and took into effect the services scoped in RTO#1 and RTO #2.  The plug numbers were removed since different offerors may have different approaches associated with allocating cost associated with materials.  For this reason, a searchable database will not be posted for this solicitation.  Also reference the Response to Question #289 in the DRFP questions for further clarification of “materials”.
The RFP has added Attachment S, Contractor Proposed Enhancements. Other plans/attachments such as the Phase-In Plan, Total Compensation Plan, Safety & Health Plan, Risk Management Plan, Small Business Utilization Plan are excluded from the page limitation.  Is Attachment S excluded from the page limitation?
Response:

Yes.  Attachment S will be excluded from page limitation and will be noted as such in Provision L.11.
Request the Government confirm that the Collective Bargaining Agreements posted in October are still the latest documents.
Response:
Yes.  The Collective Bargaining Agreements posted are the current versions.

SOW Section 3, paragraph 6 states “The contractor shall establish, maintain, and implement a Quality Assurance Plan (QAP) to ensure compliance with quality management requirements in this SOW and/or established by the contractor.  The QAP will be an attachment and become part of the contract.”   In J.1, List of Attachments, the Quality Assurance Plan (Attachment L) date field reads “TBR/TBS via Task Order” with pages “TBP.”  Item 23 on the F.2 Delivery Table states that the Quality Assurance Plan is due “30 days After Contract Effective Date”.  Based on these references, it is unclear when the QAP is to be submitted. Please clarify if the QAP is to be submitted with the proposal.

Response:
No, the QAP is not required with the proposal.  After contract award, a Task Order will include the requirement to deliver a Quality Assurance Plan 30 days after the Contract Effective Date.
Clause E.4 states “The Contractor shall comply with the higher-level quality standard selected below.  Compliance with the chosen standard is required.  
(a)   Software Engineering Management CMMI®-SE/SW Capability Level 2, or higher, as measured by a Software Engineering Institute (SEI), in the following Software Process Areas:  Requirements, Management, Configuration Management, Process and Product Quality Assurance, Measurement and Analysis, Project Planning, Project Monitoring and Control, and Supplier Agreement Management.
(b) Attachment L – Quality Assurance Plan
(c) ISO 9001:2000”
How does one determine the higher level standard between CMMI-SE/SW and ISO 9001:2000 when they address two different functions (i.e., CMMI applies to Software process areas and ISO applies to developing a Quality Management System against applicable clauses in the Standard)?

Response:
In Clause E.4, the term “higher-level” means a higher level than already defined in other solicitation references.  The term “higher-level” is not meant to infer the higher-level between CMMI and ISO.  Your assumption is correct in that CMMI applies to software process areas and ISO applies to quality management process.
SOW 3.0 clearly requires compliance with ISO 9001:2000, which is contradictory to Clause E.4.  Which takes precedence?

Response:
See Question 11.  Clause E.4 states that CMMI is applicable to software processes and ISO to quality management processes.  The SOW indeed references ISO however in Section 5.1 of the Statement of Work CMMI is also referenced concerning mission software.  The compliance is dependent on the process.
Clause E.4, Item (b), Attachment L – Quality Assurance Plan, is developed by the contractor and, therefore, is not considered a standard; it is unclear how selecting item (b) will satisfy the intent of Clause E.4 as required in the FAR. How can Attachment L be considered a standard?

Response:
Attachment L – Quality Assurance Plan, will become a standard for this contract once accepted by the Government.

This clause (E.4) in the FAR is presented as though the contractor is to complete and submit with the proposal, but the RFP does not indicate this.  Should this be completed and submitted?

Response:
See Response to Question 10.
SOW 3.0, paragraph 6 states “Within the quality management program, the contractor shall utilize a quality management system that is compliant with the International Standards Organization (ISO) criteria.  The contractor will comply with ISO 9001-2000 standards, though ISO certification is not required.  The Government may choose to audit, or get a third-party to audit the contractor established ISO compliant quality management system to ensure compliance with the standard.  The contractor shall adhere to AS9100 standards for aerospace products requirements only as required in individual IDIQ Task Orders.”  A Quality Management System for a single contract should comply with a single chosen standard that applies to all TO’s. Please clarify which standard is required for the contract.
Response:

AS9100 requirements will be removed from the Statement of Work.
Section L.11 (a)(4) states that “two electronic copies of the Offeror’s proposal, designation one as back-up, shall be submitted … in Microsoft Word and Excel (Windows XP). Cost/price Exhibits shall use Microsoft Excel 2003 and shall contain all formulas.” Is Adobe PDF an acceptable alternative file format for electronic copy delivery?

Response:
Microsoft Word and Excel are the only formats acceptable.
Section L.11 (b)(2) states “all information shall be in a single-sided page format.” Section I invokes I.12, FAR clause 52.204-2, “Printed or Copied Double-sided on Recycled Paper.” To save paper and reduce volume size and binder quantities, will the Government consider two-sided printing for hardcopy deliverables?

Response:
At this time, all information shall be provided in a single-sided page format, as stated in Provision L.11.  After contract award, two-sided printing may be considered.
Recent RFPs to which we have responded have requested that the past performance volume and customer questionnaires be submitted 1 to 2 weeks prior to the due date for the remainder of the proposal volumes. Please confirm that the past performance volume and questionnaires are due on February 20, 2009.

Response:
As stated in the RFP, all proposal information is due February 20, 2009.
The RFP states that the NAICS code for the Range Operations Contract acquisition is 517919, and the standard size is $23M (ref. transmittal letter and Section K.1).  The U.S. Small Business Administration Table of Small Business Size Standards, effective August 22, 2008, states the size standard for NAICS code 517919 is $25M.  (Reference: http//www.sba.gov/idc/groups/public/documents/sba_homepage/serv_sstd_tablepdf.pdf)  Which is the correct size standard to be applied for the Range Operations Contract?

Response:
The correct size standard for NAICS code 517919 is $25M and this will be changed in Provision K.1.

Reference Volume II, Provision L.13, Subfactor D, Small Business Utilization.  Are two plans required?  One being the “Small Business Subcontracting Plan (the Plan) Required by the FAR” and the other being “Small Disadvantage Business Participation – Contract Targets”.  

Response:
No. The Small Business Subcontracting Plan includes information on all goals.  However, there are additional steps to be taken regarding Small Disadvantage Business Participation as identified under Subfactor D.
Reference Section L.11 (b) Proposal Content and Page Limitations, Para (1).  In the table, under (b) Supporting Documentation, it excludes from page count the “Small Business Unitization” but not the Small Business Subcontracting Plan.  Is the Small Business Subcontracting Plan excluded?  Or is just one plan required covering both topics and it is excluded?
Response:

As stated in the Response to Question 20, only one plan is required.   “The Plan” identified under Subfactor D, Small Business Utilization, is excluded.
RTO 1 p.1 states “It shall be assumed that this task is repeated for Contract years 2-5 for cost estimation purposes.”  At least four of the requirements of the RTO have completion dates and are front-loaded.  For example, development of the ROMs is to be completed within 6 months of the start of the TO (according to the chart on p.7 of the RTO).  The Digital Image Database is to be completed 9 months after “start” (presumably of the Task Order-it is not stated clearly on page 7.).  The WIIMS Reporting Products have to be interfaced to the Government system by six months after Task Order start (or contract effective date according to p.1 of the RTO.)  The Configuration Management system must be operational within 3 months of TO start.  These requirements imply a commitment of resources, specifically labor, that is essentially complete when the requirements are met.  Should this workload be repeated precisely for years 2 through 5 as the RTO states?  We are concerned that an offeror may choose to decrement the out years because of this completion of tasks, and thereby reduce total cost.
Response:
RTO #1 will be clarified such that ONLY the mission set is to be assumed repeating for Contract years 2-5 for cost estimation purposes.

Is TO Start the same as Contract Effective Date.
Response:
No.  Task orders can have a start date at any time after the Contract Effective Date.  There is only one Contract Effective Date which is at the completion of Phase In.

At what point during the Phase-in Period will the Government issue Task Orders so that staffing may begin?

Response:
The Government will issue a separate contract to the successful offeror Day 1 of Phase In to complete Phase In requirements such as staffing.
The RTOs provide a set of missions for offerors to propose against, including implicit workloads.  RTO 1 page 5, paragraph 8, requires the offeror identify the support structure remaining at WFF during the Alaska Sounding Rocket campaign “for continuing local mission support that may occur…since this …may create local resource deficiencies.”  How will the Government evaluate these potential resource deficiencies against missions that may occur?  What are these additional missions and how is an offeror to account for what may happen if it is unspecified?
Response:
The RTO defines mission schedules such that local missions occur during periods when off-site operations are simultaneously required.  As stated in the Statement of Work and the RTO’s, the offeror shall be able to respond appropriately to additional Task Orders.  As stated in Provision M, flexibility and responsiveness to fluctuating program requirements and mission sets will be evaluated in addition to being able to effectively respond to new IDIQ Task Orders, including RTO #2.  There are no additional mission requirements other than those defined in RTO #1 and RTO #2.
SOW 9.1, paragraph 11 requires the contractor to provide services “associated with operating and maintaining the Land Mobile Radio system.”  It is unclear what these services are.  The LMR Operations Concept document calls the RF Comm Shop the point of contact for reporting problems and issues, but cites two off-site commercial shops (in Pocomoke and Lynchburg) as spare parts locations, and mentions the Facilities Management Help Desk as the source for resolving Land Mobile Radio system problems.  It states further that the RF Comm Shop is responsible for daily operation of the system as well as processing old radios and charging batteries, but lists both M/A-COM and General Dynamics points of contact for resolving LMR problems.  It assigns Configuration Control of the LMR to the ISAT CCB, not the RMMO contractor.  And NASA/GSFC issued an RFQ notice on November 21, 2008 for Land Mobile Radio maintenance at WFF requiring 24/7 response for LMR problems.  It appears that the solicitation is for the system but excludes end-user radios.  Does the ROC contractor respond to tasking from the Facilities Management Help Desk for trouble calls?  Is the ROC contractor not responsible for Configuration Management of the LMR?  Does the ROC contractor interface directly with WFF Code 708?  Does the ROC contractor send radios for repair to the M/A-COM or General Dynamics facilities? Does the ROC contractor purchase spares and repair parts or utilize Code 708 for purchases?  The LMR solicitation requires the offeror to monitor the LMR alarm system remotely 24/7 365, and the SOW of the ROC solicitation requires the ROC contractor to perform “overall system monitoring for the LMR system.” (But gives no hours and days requirement.) Please clarify the requirement and distinguish between the LMR contractor, the Facilities contractor, and the ROC contractor responsibilities.
Response:
The ROC contractor does not respond to tasking from the Facilities Management Help Desk for trouble calls.  If ROC contractor support is required for support of the Land Mobile Radio (LMR) system, that tasking will be done by the COTR under a Task Order with LMR support required.  The ROC contractor does not interface directly with WFF Code 708.  Code 708 was the installer of the LMR system and is available for consultation as needed but they no longer have responsibility for the LMR system.  The ROC contractor can send radios for repair to any qualified vendor of their choosing.  M/A-COM and General Dynamics information was provided in this RFP to define the current approach.  The ROC contractor is responsible for the maintenance and sustainment of the LMR system as defined in the SOW and therefore is responsible for purchasing spares and repair parts if the ROC contractor chooses to implement that approach to meet the maintenance responsibilities and performance metrics defined in this contract.  Monitoring of the LMR system past normal duty hours will be defined in IDIQ Task Orders and mission specific requirements documents.  There is no LMR contractor anymore.  That term was for the installation contractor when the system was installed.  The Facilities contractor may receive trouble calls on the LMR system and these will be relayed to the ROC contractor as needed by the COTR.  As stated in the SOW, the contractor shall operate and maintain the LMR system.
SOW 9.1 paragraph 22 requires that “the operations personnel assigned by the contractor to perform this function shall possess the radio operators licenses required to operate within the SHARES Program.”  The SHARES HF Radio Program User Manual NCS 3-3-1, p. 4-2 states “Each Federal user should establish a method for evaluating the proficiency of radio operators.” We can find no requirement in the SHARES Program documents that specifies an operator’s license.  Please clarify the requirement or specify the license required.

Response:
Currently, there are no special operator’s licenses required for the SHARES HF Radio Program.
The set of missions in the RTOs include sounding rocket launches and shuttle missions. Historically these types of events have had significant delays with launches due to various causes like shuttle launch status or weather windows or atmospheric conditions suitable for research objectives.  A realistic approach to planning for such missions would include allowances or mitigations for such delays, but would bring with it a cost increase.  How will the Government treat this subject in evaluating offers?  Will an offeror be penalized under Mission Suitability for not allowing historically likely launch delays?  Will the penalty compensate for the cost impact?  Is this factor a part of a cost realism analysis?  What is the historical record of delays that offerors should use for estimating purposes?  Or should offerors assume that launches go on schedule for proposal purposes?

Response:
Delays are not included in the RTO’s and are not required to be accounted for by the offeror.  Offerors should assume launches proceed on schedule for proposal purposes.

The Research Range Services Business Plan (2006) describes 5 specific depot level maintenance activities and eleven system upgrades.  Have the first eleven of these been completed as scheduled?  Reference the same document:  How is the current timing system obsolete? (p.19)  What new optical system does this refer to? (p.19).
Response:
Four of the eleven initiatives identified have been completed:  ACU Replacement, 7-meter System Repairs, Mobile Command Pre-deployment, and Radar Control Center Console.  The rest are still in progress.  The current timing system is approximately 30-40 years old.  It is a Wallops-developed system with limited documentation.  There are no vendors for support and it is completely supported by on-site Wallops expertise.  It continues to work well.  However, there is extreme risk due to lack of spare parts availability.  It is currently maintained at the component level.  Therefore, some repairs could result in significant downtime.   The system is currently being replaced in phases with a custom system manufactured by Brandywine, Inc.  At the time the 2006 business plan was written, there was intent to upgrade existing optical systems.  The intent was to perform sustaining activities such as repackaging optical dome electronics, migrate to mobile domes instead of fixed, and possibly buy new automated optical tracking equipment.  Currently, these efforts have not progressed either due to budget constraints and operations schedules.
The unique instrumentation at WFF including the SPANDAR, UHF, TOGA, NPOL, and LDAR, etc. have almost no documentation of any value.  The procedures provided in the technical library consist of a series of one-line instructions about which switches to turn on.  There are no block diagrams, theory of operation narratives or recommended maintenance procedures.  In the case of the precision tracking radars and surveillance radars, this kind of information is well known, and those radars are fairly standardized throughout test and launch ranges.  But the unique instrumentation at WRR is virtually a black hole.  Added to this is the fact that the bidders’ tour did not stop at these sites, and the tour script literally describes the SPANDAR part of the tour as a “drive by.”  TOGA and NPOL were not even mentioned.  The maintenance and operational workload for these systems will be well known to the incumbent and the incumbent subcontractors, but a mystery to other offerors (although the RFP is clear about NPOL and TOGA being maintained on a not-to-interfere basis).  Will the Government provide better documentation, or a nominal estimate of the operational and maintenance workload, or neutralize the incumbent’s advantage in some other way?
Response:
The User’s Guide for the Atmospheric Science Radar Facility (SPANDAR and UHF systems) will be uploaded to the contract library on January 21, 2009.  The TOGA and NPOL systems are not operated or maintained under this contract and this will be clarified in the Statement of Work.  The LDAR system is a local passive system requiring only minimal routine maintenance on a non-interference basis with other required duties.
Is the contractor responsible for maintenance and corrosion control for all towers on which instrumentation is mounted, including weather instrumentation?
Response:
No.  Tower maintenance and corrosion control is not the responsibility of the contractor.

SOW 14 paragraph 2 requires the contractor to “work with Wallops Code 708 to define requirements for WRR missions requiring WAN services.”  What does “work with” mean?  Does the contractor order the services, request them through some service ordering procedure, or verbally brief? How frequently? Daily? Please explain how the contractor “works with” Code 708.
Response:
The contractor is responsible for WAN services.  Code 708, the Wallops IT and Communications Office, is also normally part of project teams.  Code 708 maintains all communications services between facilities at Wallops Flight Facility.  Therefore, it is necessary that the contractor coordinate these intra-facility WAN service requirements with Code 708 in order to provide a complete WAN service.
SOW 14, paragraph 1 requires the contractor to perform system administration of systems supporting LAN services.  How many LANS are required to be administered, and where are they located?
Response:
The requirement is to perform systems administration of systems supporting LAN services, not systems administration of the LAN’s.  The only LAN under this requirement is the Operational LAN connecting the instrumentation systems and the Range Control Center.  There are 2 network monitoring devices located in the Range Control Center and Building N162 and these are the devices that require systems administration by the contractor.

SOW 14, paragraph 1 requires the contractor to “provide and manage the interfaces for all WAN services…” What exactly does the contractor provide?
Response:

The contractor provides an interface to enable WAN services to other locations.  The contractor shall operate and maintain these interfaces for various communications services.  These interfaces are found in Room 101 of Building E106 under the Range Control Center and in Building N162 where range fixed telemetry services are managed.
The Research Range Services Business Plan (2006) P. 41 shows WFF Code 500 AETD as responsible for “radar support”, and other web documentation describes that organization as responsible for the IRSP of Wallops radars.  What is the relationship between the contractor and Code 500?  Do all communications with IRSP have to go through Code 500?  Does Code 500 perform any part of sustainment engineering for the radars?    Where is the dividing line between Code 500 responsibilities and the contractor’s responsibilities for radar engineering and sustainment?
Response:

WFF Code 500 provides engineering services to the Wallops Range and Mission Management Office (Code 840) as needed.  This organization has civil servant employees able to provide radar engineering support to the contractor when required and requested by Code 840.  In addition, Code 840 funds the IRSP contractor for radar system depot level maintenance with the help of Code 500 for engineering oversight of the IRSP efforts.  Radar engineering and sustainment is the sole responsibility of the contractor.  As stated in the SOW, the use of IRSP is dependant on the maintenance approach chosen by the contractor.  If the contractor requires IRSP support, Code 840 will work with Code 500 and acquire these services since IRSP is a Government contract.

The language of Section M suggests that responses will be evaluated for “pertinent areas of the SOW needed to meet RTO requirements,” “elements of the SOW required to meet mission specific requirements defined in the RTO’s”, and “SOW elements required in implementation of the mission requirements.”   This implies that responses are to be limited to those SOW areas that are required for the specific mission sets in RTO 1 and 2. But the first paragraph under the heading “Task” in RTO 1 lists functions not specifically required for the mission sets that follows.  For example, continuous air traffic control is not required for the mission sets, etc.  Please clarify that mission requirements include all elements of the first paragraph and not just those SOW elements strictly related to the mission sets.
Response:

Contract requirements include all services defined in the SOW.  The RTO’s define those services required to be priced as part of the proposal effort.  The air traffic control requirement will be clarified in the RTO and as currently defined in the SOW. 

Is HVAC maintenance the contractor’s responsibility?  For mobile systems?

Response:

Yes.  HVAC maintenance for mobile systems is the contractor’s responsibility.

Are the SPANDAR and UHF radars in the IRSP?

Response:

The Government uses IRSP to support depot level maintenance on various radars.  Depending on what the maintenance service need is, IRSP is utilized.  Wallops does not “place systems in IRSP” as using IRSP for maintenance of radar systems is decided on a case by case basis by the current contractor and the Government.
Reference Section L 14, Paragraph 2.(a).  For Attachment C only, please confirm that only onsite rates need to be included in the unburdened direct labor rate tables.

Response:

Yes.  Only on-site rates need to be included in Attachment C.
Reference Provision L.12, Clause F.2.  Provision L.12 (c) (8) states that “Within 30 days after contract award, the successful Offeror shall submit for NASA approval a comprehensive Organizational Conflicts of Interest Avoidance Plan.”  Clause F.2. Item 22 states that the Organizational Conflicts of Interest Avoidance Plan is due 30 days after contract effective date.  Is the Organizational Conflicts of Interest Avoidance Plan due 30 days after contract award or 30 days after the contract effective date?
Response:

The correct date terminology for a task order contract is 30 days after the contract effective date.  Provision L.12 will be corrected to show the correct terminology.
Reference RTO 1, Page 4, Alaska Sounding Rocket Campaign.  RTO 1 states that the science window ends on March 15, 2010. The supporting documents for Vehicle 1, Vehicle 5, and Vehicle 6 in the Bidder’s Library define the last launch window to end on February 21, 2010.  Please confirm that March 15, 2010 is correct.
Response:

March 15, 2010 is correct.
Reference RTO 1, Page 2, Unmanned Aircraft System (UAS) Missions.  Which mission profile is the UAS to fly?  Mission profile 2 was called out in the Draft RFP. This statement was removed in the final RFP.  Please confirm that Mission profile 2 is correct.
Response:

The #2 referenced in the DRFP version of RTO #1 was not a mission profile.  The #2 was simply referencing the second item in the mission set that was found on page 2 of the DRFP RTO #1.  Mission profiles are not defined in the RTO and not required for this proposal activity.  The mission requirements are defined in the RTO and referenced mission documents.  If there are any discrepancies in instrumentation requirements between the RTO and mission requirements documents, the RTO takes precedence.
Reference RTO 1, Page 2, Unmanned Aircraft System (UAS) Missions.  For UAS missions, one tracking radar is called out in the RTO 1 section, yet support documentation calls out two radars to support.

Please confirm that one radar is correct.
Response:

One radar is correct.

Ref. Section B.7(b), page 6. “The Contractor’s proposed approach/pricing of the representative tasks set forth in its proposal for award of this contract shall be used as reference by the Contracting Officer in negotiating tasks with the Contractor which is issued under this contract, but only to the extent portions of the representative task are relevant to portions of a task actually issued.” We interpret the aforementioned RFP text to mean the RTOs included in the RFP do not reflect ALL work to be performed under the resulting ROC Contract. Is this correct?
Response:

Correct.  The RTO’s included in the RFP do not reflect all work to be performed under the resulting ROC contract.

Ref. Section B.8(a), page 6. “Such orders may be issued from July 9, 2009, (the effective date of this contract)….” Should the date be October 9, 2009 as indicated in the Cover Letter?
Response:
See Response to Question #1.

Ref. Section F.3, page 19. “The effective ordering period shall commence on July 9, 2009, the effective date of this contract….” Should the date be October 9, 2009 as indicated in the Cover Letter?
Response:
See Response to Question #1.

Ref. Section H.20 (a), page 50. Should the word “facilities” be removed from the RFP as indicated in the Government’s response to question 139 from the draft RFP?
Response:
Question 139 requested the removal of the area in Section H.20 that stated “Key Facilities” with no entries.  The use of the word “facilities” in the current version of H.20 is correct.
Ref. Section H.23, page 52. “…(Government Surveillance Leads will be identified in the Range Operations Contract Surveillance Plan).” Would the Government make the Range Operations Contract Surveillance Plan available in the ROC Bidder’s Library?
Response:
The Surveillance Plan is located on the NAIS Website with other Range Operations Contract documents.
Ref. Section J.1, page 105. Given the “Date” notations for Attachments L and P, can Offerors’ assume the Quality Assurance Plan and the Logistics Management Plan will be developed under separate task orders?
Response:
The Quality Assurance Plan and Logistics Management Plan may be developed under the same or separate Task Orders awarded after the contract effective date.

Ref. Section L.11(a)(5), page 118. “…(using the SOW section numbering as the proposal Work Breakdown Structure (WBS))….” Does this instruction “proposal WBS using the SOW section numbering” mean the proposal should address the SOW sequentially (e.g., 3, 4, 5, and so on) outside of the RTO response in the Mission Suitability Volume as not all SOW WBS elements are required for each Mission Set? This makes using the SOW section numbering as the proposal WBS impossible if Offeror’s address the SOW WBS sequentially in the RTO response. Additionally, SOW section numbers 1 and 2 are essentially introductory text. Would the Government consider allowing Offerors to number the proposal WBS in logical sequential order while mapping to the SOW section numbering to the fullest extent possible, but noting in each major section heading in the proposal where in the RFP (SOW and RTOs included) the proposal section is addressing?
Response:
Cost Volume Instructions, Provision L.14 (2) (d), has been clarified to define the WBS levels more clearly.  The SOW paragraph numbers have also been clarified to accurately reflect Level 0, 1, and 2 WBS elements as defined in Provision L.14 (2) (d).  This clarification will also make the Compliance Matrix in Provision L.11 (a) (5) more clear.
Ref. Section L.13(3), Subfactor A, page 126. Is the Staffing Plan excluded from page count as indicated in the Government’s response to question 94 from the draft RFP?
Response:
The Staffing Plan is excluded from page count limitations and the Table in Provision L.11 (b) will be changed to reflect the exclusion.

Ref. Section L.13 (3), Subfactor A, page 126. “In Exhibit 3 of the Cost Proposal, the Offeror shall show the total number of staff proposed for each position….” Should Exhibit 3 account for ALL staff members needed to perform work including task orders for the Quality Assurance Plan (Attachment L) and Logistics Management Plan (Attachment P) on the resulting ROC Contract or should Offeror’s simply account for all staff members needed to perform work associated with RTOs 1 and 2 including sustaining engineering and maintenance.
Response:
Exhibit 3 should account for all staff members needed to perform work based on the requirements associated with RTO’s 1 and 2. 

Ref. Section L.13(3), Subfactor B, page 129. Is the entire Subfactor B – Program Management part of the Program Management Plan as indicated in the Government’s response to question 247 from the draft RFP?
Response:
Yes.

Ref. Section L.13(3), Subfactor D, page 135. “…case law prevents the Government from giving evaluation credit to business types based on race or ethnicity unless those businesses are in under represented industries. The Section M evaluation for SDB participation ensures that the Government only evaluates participation of SDBs in industries that are designated by the Department of Commerce as under represented.” Does the aforementioned instructions imply although there are subcontracting goals associated with the RFP, an Offeror may ONLY receive evaluation credit for its subcontracting goals if it proposes to subcontract to businesses that are under represented as designated by the Department of Commerce?
Response:
The SDB goals established for the contract is made up of all SDB’s and the offeror's plan shall established how the offeror will meet those goals.  Some offerors will meet their goals by including in their plan the targeted SDB’s as designated by the Department of Commerce.  It is up to the offeror to explain in their "plan" if and how those targeted SDB’s will be used as part of achieving their goal.  It is the explanation of the inclusion of these targeted industries that will be evaluated as stated in Section M.
Ref. Section L.14(1.), page 142. “The Government does not intend to issue a separate task order for overall contract program management.” Given the RTOs are simply “representative task orders” and implied throughout the RFP the two RTOs are NOT all inclusive of task orders to be issued under the resulting ROC Contract, does the Government expect Offerors to account for ALL program management labor required to perform work on the entire ROC Contract in the RTOs in accordance with the Offeror’s approved accounting standards?
Response:
The Government expects Offeror’s to account for all program management labor required to perform work defined in the RTO’s.

Ref. Section L.14(2.)(j), page 146. “…which is expected to commence on or about May 1, 2009.” Given an anticipated contract effective date of October 9, 2009 as indicated in the Cover Letter, should the 60‐day phase‐in commencement date be on or about August 9, 2009?
Response:
See Response to Question #1.

Ref. Section L.14 (2.)(o), page 147. Exhibit 12 requires Offerors to provide costing information by contract year at WBS level 2 for parts and materials to maintain over $200M worth of equipment without any historical workload or maintenance data. This appears to heavily favor incumbent contractors. Would the Government consider reinstituting the Government provided “plug numbers” for materials in the RFP?
Response:
See Response to Question #7.

Ref. Section L.15(a), page 148. Given the page limitation imposed on the Past Performance Volume, the Offeror assumes the Government does not want an all inclusive list of relevant contract citations, but simply a set of citations to demonstrate the Offeror’s past performance history of performing similar work. Is this correct?

Response:
Yes.  Relevant past performance that provides the Government assurance that the contractor has a record of similar work is required.
Ref. Section L.18 (a), page 153. Would the Government provide a complete listing of Government provided property as referenced in Attachment D?
Response:
The list of Installation Accountable Government Property, Attachment D, is provided on the NAIS Website.

Ref. RTO#1, page 1. “Under this RTO, the Offeror shall provide range systems operations; engineering services; systems maintenance, personnel training, process improvements and process control….” This paragraph implies RTO #1 encompasses all work (operations and non‐operations) to be performed under the resulting ROC Contract, except for RTO #2, which is identified as a surge requirement. Is this correct?
Response:
It can be assumed that RTO #1 encompasses a significant portion of the work to be performed under the resulting ROC contract.  However, requirements change and new range customers may require range services at Wallops and this may drive the need for additional services under separate task orders within the scope of the resulting contract.

Ref. RTO#1, page 1. “The Period of Performance of this Task is one year (starting July 9, 2009)….” Should the commencement date of the Task be October 9, 2009 as the specified contract effective date cited in the Cover Letter is October 9, 2009.
Response:
See Response to Question #1.

Ref. RTO#1, page 4. Is the National Weather Service Balloon Sounding considered a Mission Set?
Response:
The National Weather Service Balloon Sounding is considered part of the Mission Set for RTO #1.

Is there a separate Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) for Airway Transportation Specialist (or Airway Facility Technician) or are they covered under the same LJT CBA #1 as “Electronic Technician”?
Response:
The CBA for the LJT control tower operations staff is different from the CBA for other LJT union contract members at Wallops.  The LJT Control Tower CBA was uploaded to the NAIS Website on October 6, 2008.
Ref. SOW, Section 3, page 6 and Section 4, page 19. “The contractor shall use Maximo® Version 5.2 or greater software to perform work control management and if they choose to use Maximo® for any other services, they shall use the same version of Maximo®. The contractor is responsible for providing the Maximo® software and associated user licenses and the Government will retain ownership of all data in Maximo® upon contract completion.” and “As part of the contractor’s proposed quality management system, the contractor shall develop, implement, and maintain a Range Operations Management System (ROMS) that enables accurate, timely, and coordinated project planning, and is accessible by authorized personnel.” For COTR software licensing that forms the basis of the ROMS solution and the Maximo solution, and for determining the specific roles and user count per role, please provide the user categories and estimated user count per category.
Response:
At this time, the user categories and estimated user count per category is not known for Government personnel.  Offerors are simply asked to include pricing for these elements for their personnel.  Specific user categories and user counts will be defined in a Task Order after contract award.

Ref. SOW, Section 3.1.1, page 7. Is a Range Readiness Review (RRR) a routine recurring meeting? Do these meetings occur more frequently than as part of the mission planning phase? If so, how many of these meetings are scheduled per month, per year.
Response:
A Range Readiness Review occurs prior to each mission.  The missions and their schedule are defined in the RTO’s.

Ref. SOW, Section 4. “If the contractor design requires the system to be hosted on the NASA network, the Government will provide the server. The Government shall retain all ownership rights of the software developed under this contract, except for commercial software elements that may be utilized to implement the system.” In addition to the physical server offered by the Government for hosting ROMS on the NASA network, what other IT items can Offerors expect the Government to provide? For example, will the server come with an operating system, anti‐virus, backup applications, status monitoring services, etc.? Or is the contractor expected to bid all items required except the physical server?
Response:
The contractor is expected to bid all items required except the physical server.

Ref. SOW, Section 13, page 48. How often will the Air Traffic Manager need to attend and support mission planning strategy meetings, conduct Subject Matter Expert analysis, and construct written documents to support recommendations?
Response:
The frequency at which the “Air Traffic Manager” supports the items defined in the question above is determined by the technical approach of the Offeror in implementing the requirements of the Task Orders and mission specific requirements documents.  Since requirements do not implicitly define attendance requirements for contract employees nor does it define what contract employee shall be the developer of a product required in a Task Order or mission specific requirements document, the Government is not able to define how often the Air Traffic Manager needs to attend and support mission planning strategy meetings, conduct Subject Matter Expert analysis, and construct written documents to support recommendations.

Ref. SOW, Section 13, page 48. “…and present a Quarterly Improvements Report to the COTR on any recommended services improvements….” Does WFF want Offerors to recommend airfield infrastructure improvements?
Response:
The Offeror may propose any improvements.  The Government will evaluate any proposed improvements.

Ref. SOW, Section 14, page 49. “The contractor shall, for each site location, define WAN interfaces and lines…The contractor shall ensure a consistent baseline description of each interface at every site.” While there are no existing ICDs for WAN services, are there ICDs for any of the range assets connected to the WAN and are they within the scope of the ROC Contract? If yes, would the Government provide the available ICDs for any range asset connected to the WAN?
Response:
The current contractor is not required to maintain ICD’s for WAN interfaces to range assets so these documents are not available.

The “Collective Bargaining Agreement-Meteorologist” link posted on Jan 16 when opened is a CBA titled “Collective Bargaining Agreement – Tower Operators which is the same as the Tower Operators CBA posted on October 6.  Is there a different CBA for Meteorologist?
Response:

This CBA for Tower Operators was mistakenly uploaded.  It had already been uploaded on October 6, 2008 and is still current.  The title for the upload yesterday, “Collective Bargaining Agreement – Meteorologist”, was also in error.  There is no CBA for the meteorologist positions as they are non-union employees.  The “Collective Bargaining Agreement – Meteorologist” file has been removed.
The Staffing Plan is not shown in the Proposal Component Table as supporting documentation excluded from the page count.  Is it the Government’s intention to count the Staffing Plan in the 210 page limit for the Mission Suitability Volume?
Response:
See Response to Question #51.

Is it correct to interpret the requirements for Subfactor A to mean that in addition to the TIPs, there is a required narrative response to the first page and 1/2 of requirements in L.13.3 for an overall technical approach to quality, maintenance, engineering, and configuration management as well as a single Staffing Plan?

Response:
Yes.  All requirements in Provision L shall be addressed by the Offeror and the offerors proposal will be evaluated as defined in Provision M.  It should be noted that the Staffing Plan is excluded from page count limitations as noted in the response to Questions #51.
SOW Section 3, paragraph 17 states: “The contractor shall adhere to NPR 7120.5 and NPR 7120.8 for various WRR missions with the specific NPR required defined in Task Orders, Work Orders, and mission specific requirements documents.”  SOW Section 3.1.5, paragraph 1 states: “The contractor shall adhere to NPR 7120.5 and NPR 7120.8 for various WRR missions with the specific NPR required defined in Task Orders, Work Orders, and mission specific requirements documents.”  SOW Section 3.1.5, paragraph 3 states: “The WIIMS system provides Government insight into contractor technical progress/schedule and cost accruals for each task order and work order for each customer.” SOW Section 3.8, paragraph 9 states: “Cost associated with this travel shall be defined under the travel line item on Government cost reports and on work orders.” SOW Section 4.1, paragraph 13 states: “Certain individual missions included within an IDIQ Task Orders will require similar cost estimates and for those missions work orders will be generated.” SOW Section 4.1, paragraph 14 states: “The contractor shall generate and provide cost estimates for their services for mission specific WRR customers within fifteen days of Government request unless a different delivery schedule is mutually established.  This shall be done through the WIIMS for each IDIQ task order and work order.” SOW Section 7, paragraph 3 states: “Radar services may be required simultaneously for various missions based on mission schedules as defined in various Task Orders and Work Orders.”  The difference between a Work Order and a Task Order is unclear.  The WIIMS overview addresses only Task Orders and there is no definition or scope provided for Work Orders in the RFP.  Please clarify.  
Response:
Contract requirements will be defined, negotiated and approved at the task order level in the WIIMS system.  The WIIMS is an intermediate system operating between the required MAXIMO work control system, i.e. labor hours per day per employee, materials, subcontracts, AND the offeror’s approved accounting system, i.e. addition of indirect rates and fee.  To do this, WIIMS sets up one “work order number” to which all work information accumulates.  This “work order” accumulation is then “uploaded” to the Task Order in WIIMS identifying current expenditures to date.   Because of the use of Task Orders and Work Orders throughout the documents named above, the hierarchy is Task Order is first and the Work Order is second.
Ref. SOW, Section 8.2, page 34. “The contractor shall arrange and coordinate range surveillance/recovery services, including aircraft and boats, recovery vessels, crew, and operational services.”  Please clarify the Government’s intention with “arrange.”  Does the Government want the Offeror to procure the required services or to simply arrange and coordinate the schedule for such services that are available under other contractual vehicles?

Response:
The Offeror shall procure all commercially provided surveillance/recovery services as required for each mission.  In some cases, the US Coast Guard will be required for certain surveillance and recovery activities.  In this instance, since the Offeror cannot procure services from the US Coast Guard, the Offeror shall identify what services required from the US Coast Guard in their Range Surveillance and Recovery activities defined in Section 8.2 of the SOW and NASA will arrange for these services supporting the Offeror’s surveillance and recovery needs.
Ref. SOW, Section 7, page 32. “… and with no additional staffing attributable to these systems.  These two radars, TOGA and NPOL, shall be deployed to locations around the world and shall be operated by the contractor on a non-interference basis with other duties required in support of the WRR.”  Since no “additional staffing” is required to support the TOGA and NPOL radars, who provides maintenance and sustaining engineering for these two radars.

Response:
See Response to Question #30.  Maintenance and sustaining engineering for the TOGA and NPOL radars is performed by a separate contract managed by Code 614 at Wallops.
Ref. L.14.2(d).  Originally, the Government provided “plug numbers” for materials, sustaining engineering, and maintenance costs.  Subsequently, the Government modified the RFP instructions requesting Offerors provide detailed costing information for the aforementioned items.  As this requirement will most likely amount to millions of dollars and there is no historical maintenance information, service records, and the like, it is nearly impossible for an Offeror to provide a reasonably accurate cost estimate for materials, sustaining engineering, and maintenance.  Furthermore, the absence of detailed historical workload data as a baseline heavily favors an incumbent contractor in meeting the requirement to provide detailed costing information as specified in L.14.2(d).  Accordingly, we request the Government reinstate the “plug numbers” for materials as originally provided in the draft RFP.
Response:
See Response to Question #7.
Ref. SOW, Section 5.2, page 26. “The contractor shall provide range technology development engineering services and associated management for the continued development of such on-going WRR range technology projects such as the Low Cost TDRSS Transceiver (LCT2) and Autonomous Flight Safety System (AFSS) and be able to respond to these requirements in IDIQ task orders that enable the evolution of the Range architecture to include space-based metric tracking, telemetry, and command relay.”  Given an incumbent contractor possesses exclusive rights to production of the (LCT2), we request the Government remove the requirement from the SOW as no other Offeror has “rights” to provide the LCT2 solution.
Response:
LJT and Associates, Inc. (LJT) has rights to the production of the LCT2 transmitter, however, as stated in the SOW, the requirement is for “continued development” of such systems, not production of an LCT2 transmitter.  To perform continued development or enhancements as required by the Government, LJT has no exclusive rights.  The Government has access to all systems documentation for the LCT2.
RFP L.11 (a)(2), page 117 and RFP L.14-1., page 141.  Please confirm that ‘NON’ major subcontractors are not required to submit a Cost Proposal to NASA or to their cognizant DCAA office.
Response:

Yes, NON major subcontractors are NOT required to submit a Cost Proposal to NASA.

In response to submitted question 71, regarding the page limit of the Staffing Plan, NASA responded by referring to its response to Question 51.  That response indicates that the Staffing Plan is page unlimited.   NASA’s response to question 72 also indicates an unlimited page count for the Staffing Plan.  NASA’s responses to both of these questions appear to require the offeror to submit a single standalone Staffing Plan.  However, the RFP Section L and Section M direct the offeror to provide staffing data in both Subfactor A and B without any direction to supplying the Staffing Plan in a single standalone format.  Section L.13 Subfactor A requires a Staffing Plan for RTOs 1 and 2, while other instructions require staffing information integrated in the Subfactor B response.  Is it the Government’s intention to require a page unlimited standalone Staffing Plan in addition to the Section L and M staffing related responses that count against the Volume II page limit?  Or is it the Government’s intention that those integrated responses be consolidated into a single, page-unlimited Staffing Plan?  Additionally there is no direction as to where the Plan should be placed, Subfactor A or B.

Response:

L.13 in the Final RFP clearly defines what is required in the Staffing Plan.  The Government will evaluate the Staffing Plan as defined in M.4.  The term "Staffing Plan" is not mentioned in Subfactor B.  There are a few references to "staffing" information made in Subfactor B, however, this is information requested in the Phase In Plan and since the Phase In Plan and the Staffing Plan are not page limited, you may reference pertinent sections of the Staffing Plan in your Phase In Plan.  In Subfactor A, there is only one reference to "staffing" information to be included in the RTO #1 TIP.  In this case, as stated in the RFP, this information shall be included in the RTO #1 TIP, realizing that this information will also be in the Offeror's Staffing Plan.
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